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Bill Stevenson, Deputy Director of Administration, conducted the Pre-Proposal Meeting for the 
Employers’ Training Resource (ETR) Request for Proposals (RFP) for Kern County Workforce 
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Programs for Program Year (PY) 2016-17.  Highlights 
are below: 
 
WIOA’s final regulations, allocations and performance standards have not been announced.  
Therefore, ETR has issued this RFP with estimated funding levels and performance measures 
based on the PY 2015-16 Workforce Investment Act (WIA) goals.  The funding levels are 
roughly $3.5 million for the Adult program and $3.5 million for the Dislocated Worker program. 
 
The RFP is not for Individual Training Accounts, Youth or Farmworker only programs.  This RFP 
is targeted to Adult and Dislocated Worker activities and services.   
 
Three Categories of Programs/Activities are targeted: 
 

• One Service Provider for the Delano America’s Job Center of California (AJCC) 
 

• One or more providers to operate and administer subsidized Work Experience (WEX) 
Programs 

 
• The RFP will also accept for consideration proposals for reimbursement contracts for 

training provided they meet the exceptions under WIOA Section 134-3C(G) and the 
training is provided in a manner that maximizes consumer choice. 

 
Each category has its own application.  Please see the RFP to find more information about 
these categories. 
 
Important Dates to Remember: 

• Proposals are due Thursday April 21, 2016 before 11:00 am, Pacific Daylight Time at 
1600 East Belle Terrace, Bakersfield, CA, 93307, 2nd floor reception.   

• Notification of Results May 6, 2016 
• Workforce Development Board Meeting- June 9, 2016 
• Appeal Deadline – June 16, 2016 at 5:00 p.m. 
• Initial Contract Period – July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 

 
 
Question 1.  
Explain what a Pay-for Performance Contract is, and is it something we will have to do? 
 
Answer: Pay for Performance or Pay for Success is a contracting model in which a provider is 
only paid when results are achieved within a specific timeframe.  It is further explained here: 



http://www.americaforward.org/uploads/1/9/8/0/19801813/pay_for_success_in_wioa_overview_f
inal_1.pdf. 
 
For the purposes of procuring contracted training classes, agencies must meet one WIOA 
exception as stated on Section III-C-1 of the RFP.  Pay for Performance is just one exception.  
Agencies are not required to use the Pay for Performance model, but must meet one of the five 
exceptions to be able to provide contract training classes. 
 
Question 2.  
Shafter was included in the Delano AJCC service area.  Previously the areas of Wasco, 
McFarland and Delano were the service area.  Has there been a change, in terms of which 
cities they are serving?   
 
Answer:  Geographically Delano’s office may be closer to some parts of Shafter than the offices 
in Bakersfield.  It doesn’t necessarily mean that this office alone must serve this whole region.  
Customers can access any center they choose.  A client from Shafter may choose to go to the 
Delano center.   
 
Question 3. 
Is the RFP considering a new facility in Delano or using the current facility? 
 
Answer:  The current facility would be used.  This RFP is for operating the program. Overhead, 
lease and other costs are covered by ETR. 
 
Question 4. 
Can you apply for each different area of the RFP? 
 
Answer: Yes, agencies are not limited to one. 
 
Question 5. 
Is Subsidized Work Experience a currently operating program? 
 
Answer:  Yes, we currently offer Subsidized Work Experience.  It is one of the best ways to 
bridge training to a job. 
 
Question 6. 
The budget levels are not yet available.  Should we use last year’s level?  How should we 
handle this? 
 
Answer:  The funding allocation levels for PY 2016 have not yet been released.  We anticipate 
that our funding should be about the same as last year.  Last year’s allocation was about $3.5 
million for Adults and $3.5 million for Dislocated Workers.  When available allocation levels will 
be announced in the EDD Information Bulletins released here: 
http://www.edd.ca.gov/jobs_and_training/Information_Notices.htm.   
 
Question 7. 
In designing programs for the third category of the RFP- Contracted Training Classes 
(Section III-C-1) which meet the WIOA exceptions how does a provider know if they are 
going in the right direction?  Specifically, the exceptions detailed in sections b, c and d. 
 

http://www.americaforward.org/uploads/1/9/8/0/19801813/pay_for_success_in_wioa_overview_final_1.pdf
http://www.americaforward.org/uploads/1/9/8/0/19801813/pay_for_success_in_wioa_overview_final_1.pdf
http://www.edd.ca.gov/jobs_and_training/Information_Notices.htm


Answer:  The Individual Training Account (ITA) vendor model is the preferred method of 
delivering training programs.  WIOA also allows contracted training programs under certain 
circumstances as detailed in this section of the RFP.  Proposals must describe how the program 
meets the exception.   
 
When all the proposals come in we must look at what is being proposed and what is already 
offered as an ITA.  The Workforce Development Board and staff will determine what gaps may 
exist.  Consider doing some research on your program idea and see how it may fit into these 
exceptions. 
 
Eligible Training List Providers for our area can be found here: www.caljobs.ca.gov.  Location of 
our area’s Five-Year plan is shown in the next question.  
 
Question 8.  Where would proposers find the Five-Year plan or information about 
industry clusters and the high wage, high demand occupations? 
 
Answer:  The Local Strategic Workforce Plan for PYs 2013-17 is on the ETR website here: 
http://www.etronline.com/wib/wia-five-year-plan.pdf.  It contains information about our area’s 
industry clusters and demand occupations. 
 
Question 9. 
Is there other special grant funding? 
 
Answer:  We receive a variety of funding.  Each different funding stream is specific to targeted 
populations.  This statement was added to the RFP to inform proposers that their programs may 
not be funded with only formula funds.  Participants may be co-enrolled in two or more different 
funding streams.  
 
Question 10. 
Can a provider submit more than one application for the third category – Contracted 
Training Classes Which Meet WIOA Exceptions? 
 
Answer:  Yes, but each different program will require its own application.  There is no limit to the 
number of applications, but 30% of our Adult and Dislocated Worker allocation must be spent on 
training.  This funding is spread across ITAs, On-the-Job Trainings (OJT) and contracted 
training.  We also have other programs, such as Work Experience, that are not training that are 
funded from these sources.  Leveraged funds (up to 10%) can also be used towards the 30% 
requirement.  Funding availability will be an important limiting factor when procuring contracted 
training. 
 
Question 11.  
For the Delano AJCC portion of the RFP, are the participant numbers an estimate or are 
these actual numbers? 
 
Answer: These numbers were based on historical data.  The Delano AJCC has had about 300 
new visits (walk-ins) and about ten Dislocated Workers/Adults are enrolled monthly.  These 
numbers do not include Youth, Farmworkers or other grant client.  Delano may also refer clients 
to the offices in Bakersfield. 
 
Question 12.  
Do you see performance as about the same as what was presented in the RFP? 

http://www.caljobs.ca.gov/
http://www.etronline.com/wib/wia-five-year-plan.pdf


 
Answer: Required performance measure goals have not been released.  What is contained in 
the RFP are the WIA performance measures for 2015-16.  WIOA will have different 
performance measures such as median wage versus average wage, and we will share these 
goals when they become available.  A comparison of WIA and WIOA performance measures 
can be found here: 
http://www.futureworksystems.com/pdf/WIOA-
CommonMeasures_NewMeasures_Comparison.pdf  
 
Question 13: 
Does ETR negotiate performance goals? 
 
Answer: We have the opportunity to negotiate our performance goals.  We do not yet have the 
local goals, and these will be shared when they become available. 
 
Question 14: 
Tracking performance.  Who tracks this, and how do they do it? 
 
Answer:  Training will be provided for agencies who receive funding.  Funded agencies are 
responsible for communicating and reporting to ETR on a regular basis.  Along with invoicing, 
agencies must report other data items related to performance on a monthly basis.  When a 
participant completes a training program they are transferred to Intensive Case Management 
(ICM) and are assigned an ETR case manager who tracks and works with them to locate 
employment.  The Employment Development Department tracks wage base data for all clients 
and can identify when people are working or not.  As we transition to WIOA’s changing 
Performance Measures, new or different tracking methods may be required. 
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